## **Cherwell District Council and South Northamptonshire Council**

## **Joint Commissioning Committee**

Minutes of a meeting of the Joint Commissioning Committee held at The Forum, Moat Lane, Towcester, NN12 6AD, on 26 May 2016 at 6.30 pm

Present: Councillor Nicholas Turner (Chairman)

Councillor Ian McCord (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack
Councillor Phil Bignell
Councillor Rebecca Breese
Councillor Chris Lofts
Councillor G A Reynolds
Councillor Barry Richards
Councillor Dan Sames

Councillor Barry Wood

Substitute Councillor Peter Rawlinson (In place of Councillor Roger

Members: Clarke)

Apologies Councillor Anthony S. Bagot-Webb

for Councillor Roger Clarke

absence:

Officers: Karen Curtin, Commercial Director

Ian Davies, Director of Operational Delivery

Paul Sutton, Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer

Claire Taylor, Business Transformation Manager

Hedd Vaughan Evans, Transformation Project Manager Claire Cox, HR Business Partner for Community Services

Mandy Targett, HR Business Partner for Resources Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections

# 1 Appointment of Chairman for the Municipal Year 2016/17

## Resolved

That Councillor Nicholas Turner be appointed Chairman of the Joint Commissioning Committee for the Municipal Year 2016/17.

## 2 Appointment of Vice-Chairman for the Municipal Year 2016/17

#### Resolved

That Councillor Ian McCord be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Joint Commissioning Committee for the Municipal Year 2016/17.

## 3 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

# 4 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting

There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting.

## 5 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

## 6 Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19 April 2016 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

# 7 A Business Case for a Joint Community and Leisure Service

The Director of Operational Delivery submitted a report which presented the final business case following consultation for a Joint Community and Leisure Service across Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Councils and sought agreement of the staffing elements of the business case.

The proposal was part of the wider transformation programme across the two Councils.

The Director of Operational Delivery confirmed that the Joint Councils Employee and Engagement Committee had considered and endorsed the business case, recommending to the Joint Commissioning Committee that it be approved.

## Resolved

(1) That having considered the responses to the consultation process with the affected staff and trade union representatives and from the Joint Councils Employee Engagement Committee, it be agreed that no amendment to the business case was required as a result of them.

- (2) That it be noted that the business case would be considered in respect of non-staffing matters by CDC Executive on 6 June 2016 and by SNC Cabinet on 13 June 2016.
- (3) That the staffing aspects of the final business case to share a joint Community and Leisure Service between SNC and CDC, subject to consideration and approval of the non-staffing implications by CDC Executive and SNC Cabinet, be approved.
- (4) That authority be delegated to the Director of Operational Delivery, in consultation with the Chairman of the Joint Commissioning Committee, to make any non-significant amendment that may be required to the business case following the decision by CDC Executive and/or SNC Cabinet.

(Councillors Chris Lofts and Barry Richards requested that their votes against the recommendations be recorded)

## 8 Business Case for a Joint Revenues and Benefits Service

The Head of Finance and Procurement submitted a report which presented the final business case following consultation for a joint Revenues and Benefits service across Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Councils and sought agreement of the staffing elements of the business case.

The proposal was part of the wider transformation programme across the two Councils.

The Head of Finance and Procurement confirmed that the Joint Councils Employee and Engagement Committee had considered and endorsed the business case, recommending to the Joint Commissioning Committee that it be approved.

## Resolved

- (1) That the responses to the consultation process with the affected staff and trade union representatives received as detailed in the consultation log and from the Joint Councils Employee Engagement Committee be considered and noted and it be determined that no amendment to the business case was required as a result of them.
- (2) That it be noted that the business case would be considered in respect of non-staffing matters by CDC Executive on 6 June 2016 and by SNC Cabinet on 13 June 2016.
- (3) That the staffing aspects of the final business case to create a joint Revenues and Benefits service between SNC and CDC, subject to consideration and approval of the non-staffing implications by CDC Executive and SNC Cabinet, be approved.
- (4) That authority be delegated to the Head of Finance and Procurement, in consultation with the Chairman of the Joint Commissioning

Committee, to make any non-significant amendments that may be required to the business case following the decision by CDC Executive and/or SNC Cabinet.

(Councillors Chris Lofts and Barry Richards requested that their votes against the recommendations be recorded)

# 9 Appointment of Joint Appraisal Sub-Committee for 2016-17

The Democratic and Elections Team Leader advised the Committee that the responsibility for appraising the Joint Chief Executive laid with elected members appointed to the Joint Appraisal Sub Committee.

The Joint Appraisal Sub Committee was made up of a total of 8 members (including the Leaders from each Council), drawn from the Joint Commissioning Committee.

The meeting dates of the Joint Appraisal Sub-Committee were scheduled for 6 October 2016 (The Forum, Moat Lane, Towcester) and 2 March 2017 (Bodicote House, Bodicote).

In considering the matter, Members agreed that appointments should be deferred pending a review of the Chief Executive's appraisal process. The Leaders would meet with the Chief Executive and bring recommendations to the next meeting.

## Resolved

(1) That the appointment of Members to the Joint Appraisal Sub-Committee for 2016/17 be deferred pending a review of the Chief Executive's appraisal process, with recommendations to be submitted to the next meeting of the Joint Commissioning Committee.

# 10 Urgent Business - 2016 Cost of living pay award for the Joint Management Team and Shared Service Managers

The Chairman reported that one item of urgent business had been added to the agenda: 2016 Cost of living pay award for the Joint Management Team and Shared Service Managers

The Commercial Director submitted a report to consider a cost of living pay award for the Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of Service and shared service managers who were outside of the mainstream pay negotiating framework for employees of Cherwell District Council (CDC) and South Northamptonshire Council (SNC).

In introducing the report, the HR Business Partner for Resources advised the Committee that following recent discussions with Unison at SNC an offer of 1.25% increase, in line with that at Cherwell District Council, had been made with a proviso that all future pay negotiations would be agreed locally. This

was subject to the approval of the SNC Appointments and Personnel Committee meeting of 13 June 2016.

At their meeting earlier in the day, the Joint Councils Employee Engagement Committee (JCEEC) had considered a report regarding a Pay Policy Change for SNC Employees and the 2016/2017 Pay Award.

JCEEC had recommended that the SNC Appointments and Personnel Committee agree a move away from a "tracking" of the national pay award to joint local pay bargaining with Cherwell District Council and the recognised trade unions of each council, Unison, from 1 April 2016. The SNC Appointments and Personnel Committee would be considering a report on this matter at their 13 June 2016.

## Resolved

- (1) That, subject to the approval of the SNC Appointments and Personnel Committee to a 1.25% pay award to mainstream staff, an annual cost of living pay award of 1.25% for the Chief Executive, Directors, Chief Finance Officer, Heads of Service and other shared service managers pay grades be agreed.
- (2) That an implementation date of 1 April 2016 for the pay award be agreed and authority delegated to the Chief Finance Officer to implement the Committee's decision.

# 11 Exclusion of the Public and Press

#### Resolved

That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A of that Act.

# 12 A Business Case for a Joint Community and Leisure Service - Exempt Appendices

## Resolved

(1) That the exempt appendices be noted.

# Business Case for a Joint Revenues and Benefits Service - Exempt Appendices

#### Resolved

(1) That the exempt appendices be noted.

# 14 ICT Staffing Structure (two way)

The Commercial Director submitted an exempt report which presented a staffing structure for the two way ICT Service across Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Councils, which set out a final proposal following the formal staff and trade union consultation process.

## Resolved

- (1) That the final staffing structure for a Joint ICT Service be agreed.
- (2) That officers be requested to undertake a post implementation review to ensure that the new two way structure is operating effectively and it be suggested that this review take place before March 2017.

The meeting ended at 7.15 pm

(3) That the implementation plan be noted.

Chairman:

Date: